
           

TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL  

Monday, MAY 22, 2017
 

 

JUANITA POHL CENTER  

8513 SW Tualatin Road  

Tualatin, OR 97062  

WORK SESSION begins at 5:30 p.m.
BUSINESS MEETING begins at 7:00 p.m.

     Mayor Lou Ogden

Council President Joelle Davis

 Councilor Robert Kellogg            Councilor Frank Bubenik
 Councilor Paul Morrison             Councilor Nancy Grimes

Councilor Jeff DeHaan
 

Welcome! By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process
of representative government. To encourage that participation, the City Council has specified a
time for your comments on its agenda, following Announcements, at which time citizens may
address the Council concerning any item not on the agenda or to request to have an item
removed from the consent agenda. If you wish to speak on a item already on the agenda,
comment will be taken during that item. Please fill out a Speaker Request Form and submit it to
the Recording Secretary. You will be called forward during the appropriate time; each speaker
will be limited to three minutes, unless the time limit is extended by the Mayor with the consent
of the Council.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred
to on this agenda are available for review on the City website at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings, the Library located at 18878 SW Martinazzi Avenue, and on
file in the Office of the City Manager for public inspection. Any person with a question
concerning any agenda item may call Administration at 503.691.3011 to make an inquiry
concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, you should contact Administration at 503.691.3011. Notification
thirty-six (36) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to this meeting.

Council meetings are televised live the day of the meeting through Washington County Cable
Access Channel 28. The replay schedule for Council meetings can be found at www.tvctv.org.
Council meetings can also be viewed by live streaming video on the day of the meeting at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings.

Your City government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend the City of Tualatin
Council meetings often.

 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings
http://www.tvctv.org/
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings


 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS
A legislative public hearing is typically held on matters which affect the general welfare of the
entire City rather than a specific piece of property.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the subject.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken.
4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When the Council has finished questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, deny, or continue the public
    hearing.
 

PROCESS FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS
A quasi-judicial public hearing is typically held for annexations, planning district changes,
conditional use permits, comprehensive plan changes, and appeals from subdivisions,
partititions and architectural review.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the case to be considered.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken:

a) In support of the application
b) In opposition or neutral

4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When Council has finished its questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, approve with conditions, or 
    deny the application, or continue the public hearing. 
 

TIME LIMITS FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS
The purpose of time limits on public hearing testimony is to provide all provided all interested
persons with an adequate opportunity to present and respond to testimony. All persons providing
testimony shall be limited to 3 minutes, subject to the right of the Mayor to amend or waive the
time limits.

EXECUTIVE SESSION INFORMATION
An Executive Session is a meeting of the City Council that is closed to the public to allow the City
Council to discuss certain confidential matters. An Executive Session may be conducted as a
separate meeting or as a portion of the regular Council meeting. No final decisions or actions
may be made in Executive Session. In many, but not all, circumstances, members of the news
media may attend an Executive Session.

The City Council may go into Executive Session for certain reasons specified by Oregon law.
These reasons include, but are not limited to: ORS 192.660(2)(a) employment of personnel;
ORS 192.660(2)(b) dismissal or discipline of personnel; ORS 192.660(2)(d) labor relations; ORS
192.660(2)(e) real property transactions; ORS 192.660(2)(f) information or records exempt by
law from public inspection; ORS 192.660(2)(h) current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; and
ORS 192.660(2)(i) employee performance of chief executive officer.

 



 

OFFICIAL AGENDA OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 22,
2017

           

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

  

 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS   

 

1. Proclamation Declaring the week of May 21-27, 2017 as Emergency Medical Services
Week in the City of Tualatin

 

2. New Employee Introduction- Engineering Associate Shawn Strasser   

 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

  

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you
wish to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

  

 

1. Adoption of Resolution No. 5320-17 authorizing the City Manager to sign the
contracts for the 2016/17 Pavement Maintenance Program. 

 

E. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will
be called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

  

 

1. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1399-17 Relating To Utility Facilities In The
Rights-Of-Way; Adding New Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 3-6 And Repealing
Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 10-1 (Telecommunications)

 

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5319-17 Declaring the City of Tualatin a Sanctuary
City

 

F. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

  



 

G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS   

 

H. ADJOURNMENT   

 



   
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/22/2017  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Proclamation Declaring the week of May 21-27, 2017 as Emergency

Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Proclamation Declaring the week of May 21-27, 2017 as Emergency Medical Services Week in
the City of Tualatin

Proclamation 



Proclamation 
 

Declaring the Week of May 21-27, 2017 as  
Emergency Medical Services Week  

in the City of Tualatin 

 WHEREAS emergency medical services are a vital public service; and 

 WHEREAS the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide 
lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and 

 WHEREAS access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and 
recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 

 WHEREAS the emergency medical services system consists of emergency 
physicians, emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, 
educators, administrators and others; and 

 WHEREAS the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or 
volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education 
to enhance their lifesaving skills; and 

 WHEREAS it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 
emergency medical services providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week;  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON that: 

 The week of May 21-27, 2017 is designated as Emergency Medical Services Week in 
the City of Tualatin to call attention to Emergency Medical Services providers for the 
outstanding service they provide to the community. The City Council also calls upon the 
community to express their thanks to these the men and women for their outstanding 
dedication to their field.  

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of May, 2017. 
 
       CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
 
       BY _________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 

BY _________________________ 
         City Recorder 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Kathy Kaatz, Program Coordinator
Bert Olheiser

DATE: 05/22/2017

SUBJECT: Adoption of Resolution No. 5320-17 authorizing the City Manager to sign the
contracts for the 2016/17 Pavement Maintenance Program. 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Staff is requesting adoption of Resolution No. 5320-17, authorizing the City Manager to sign the
contracts for the 2016/17 Pavement Maintenance Program. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to the apparent low bidder, Kodiak Pacific
Construction in the amount of $835,000.00. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
A solicitation for bids was published in the April 21 and April 28 issues of the Daily Journal of
Commerce.  The Bids were publicly opened and read on Wednesday, May 10, 2017 at the
Operations Facility with the apparent low bidder being Kodiak Pacific Construction. The
following bids were received:
  
Kodiak Pacific
Construction

                      
964,000.00

Brix Paving Northwest,
Inc.

                   
1,041,105.00

S-2 Contractors, Inc.                    
1,049,710.00

The Engineer's estimate for this project was $858,375.00 which included both Schedule A and
B.  Due to the fact that all the bids received exceeded the amount of budgeted funds,
some areas originally intended for this year's budget were removed from the contract to stay
within the available funds of $835,000.00.  The locations of Spokane Court and 100th
Court were removed from the contract and will be completed in future years.



Once the bid is awarded, staff plans to issue the Notice to Proceed on July 5, 2017; the list of
projects to be completed in this year's program is attached.  In our customary fashion, we will
be doing public notice through social media, door hangers, and other notice to those affected to
ensure everyone is aware of the schedule and what is being done.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Funding for this program is included in the 2016/17 and 2017/18 Road Utility Funds
for pavement maintenance and Storm Drain Fund for catch basin retrofits to meet Clean Water
Service requirements.    

Attachments: 1-A Resolution 5320-17
Pavement Improvements Map



RESOLUTION NO. 5320-17  
 

Resolution No. 5320-17   Page 1  

 
RESOLUTION AWARDING THE BID FOR THE 2016/17 PAVEMENT 

MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Notice of the 2016/17 Pavement Maintenance Project was 
published in the Daily Journal of Commerce on April 21 and 28, 2017; and 

  
 WHEREAS, three proposals were received and publically opened and read on 
May 10, 2017; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the procurement complies with the City’s public contracting 

requirements; and 
 

 WHEREAS, funds are available for this project in the Road Utility Fund 

and Storm Drain Fund; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 
 

Section 1.  Kodiak Pacific Construction was the successful responsible low 

bidder and is hereby awarded a contract for the 2016/17 Pavement Maintenance 

Program. 
 
 Section 2.  The City Manager is authorized to execute a contract with Kodiak 

Pacific Construction in the amount of $835,000.00. 
 
 Section 3.  The City Manager or designee is authorized to execute Change 

Orders totaling up to 10% of the original contract price. 
 
 Section 4.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 

 

 
Adopted by the City Council this 22nd Day of May, 2017. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 

BY _______________________  
                City Attorney  

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

 
BY _______________________   

          Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

BY _______________________    
                 City Recorder 

 



SW
 11

8T
H 

AV
E

WOODSIDE C IR

WOODSIDECIR

SW MONTAUK CIR

SW MOHAWK ST

SW
 MOHAW

K ST

SW IN
DI

AN
SP

RI
NG

S
CI

R

SW
COW

LIT Z DR

S W
CA

L U
SA

LO
OP

SW TONKA ST

SW CRE E CI
R

SW
HEDGE S

DR

S W
PI

MA
AV

E

SW
90

T H
CT

PIONEER CT

SW
 11

9T
H 

AV
E

SW
12

4T
H

AV
E

SW
124TH AVE

SW
 TU

AL
AS

AU
M 

DR

SW
96

TH
DR

SW
AVERYCT

ALBERT CIR

ALB
ER

T CIR

SW CHEHALIS ST

SW
 55

TH
 C

T

SW
90

TH
AV

E

S W
98

TH
CT

SW
 50

TH
 AV

E

SW
 12

0T
H 

AV
E

RIVERS EDGE DR

SW NORSE HALL RD

SW
BYR

OM
TER

SW
 51

ST
 AV

E

SW
 48

TH
 AV

E

SW SEQUOIA DR

CA
NA

L R
D

SW
 56

TH
 C

T

SW IROQUOIS DR

TUALATA LN

ED
EN

S 
ED

GE
 D

R

SW
 94

TH
 AV

E

SW
FU

LLE
R DR

SW
10

3R
D

AV
E

SW COLUMBIA CIR

SW
GREENWOOD CIR

SW
VE

RMILLIO
N

DR

SW MCEWAN RD

ME
LIS

S A
DR

SW HALCYON RD

SW
 TU

AL
AT

A A
VE

SW
10

7T
H

AV
E

SW
98TH AVE

SW
 JURGENS AVE

SW WAMPANOAG DR

SW SAUM WAY

SW TUALATIN RD

SW
SHAW

NE E TR L

SW PETERS RD

SW
 95

TH
 AV

E

SW
 76

TH
 AV

E

SW
78

TH
AV

E

SW
 11

5T
H 

AV
E

SW ARIKARA DR

SW WICHITA ST

SW ONEIDA ST

SW
 67

TH
 AV

E

SW MANHASSET DR

SW DELAWA RE CIR

SW
 12

6T
H 

PL

SW
MI AM I DR

SW DAWN ST

SW
 125TH CT

SW
 S

YC
AM

OR
E A

VE

SW
KR

IS
TI

WA
Y

SW CHILDS RD

SW
 K

RI
ST

I W
AY

S W
ARROW

OOD
AV E

SW IBACH CT

SW
 M

AR
LIN

 AV
E

SW RED LEAF ST

SW CR
EE

K
DR

SW AMU ST

SW CHOCTAW ST

SW
82

ND
AV

E

SW
 87

TH
 P

L

SW
Y A QUINA

C T

SW PAWNEE PATH

SW
 10

7T
H 

AV
E

SW JOSHUA ST

SW
TE

RR
Y

AV
E

SW BLAKE ST

SW
 11

1T
H 

AV
E

SW SPOKANE CT

SW BROWN ST

SW CHUNUT CT

SW
RE

D W
IN

G
CT

SW
 E

LK
 H

OR
N 

CT

SW SENECA ST

S W
CO

LECT

SW
 K

AW
AN

DA
 C

T

SW
 59

TH
 TE

R

SW
 10

0T
H 

CT

SW CLEAR ST

SW TREE ST

SW
WARM SPRINGS ST

SW GARDNER CT

SW DOGWOOD DR

SW WILLOW ST

SW KLAMATH CT

SW NYBERG LN

SW OCHOC
O

C T

SW
1 0

9T
HT

ER
SW OMAHA CT

SW NAT
CH

EZ CT

SW ALSEA CT

SWPONCA CT

SW PIUTE CT

SW
 91

ST
 TE

R

SW JOSHUA ST

SW
 C

HI
PP

EW
A T

RL

SW PATWIN CT

SW WEST RD

SW PUEBLO ST

GRACE ST

SW TUALATA CT

SW HEDGES CT

BASS LN

SW
 M

AR
EE

 C
T

CASEY CT

SW
ER IO

PL

SW UMIAT ST

SW WASCO WAY

S W
10

3R
DDR

SW WINEMA DR

SW
 10

4T
H

SW NORWOOD RD

DE
ER

OA
K

A V
E

SW LEVETON DR

SW OCHOCO DR

SW
 112TH AVE

SW KILLARNEY LN

SW PAULINA DR

SW CHILDS RD

SW
111

TH
AVE

SW D OGWO OD ST

SW
 SILETZ CT

DE
ER

BR
US

H
AV

E

SW
HAZELFERN RD

SW
 84

TH
 AV

E

SW
CHILKAT TE

R

SW MEIER DR

SW
 10

3R
D 

AV
E

SW
 10

8T
H 

AV
E

SW WOODY END

SW
75TH

AVE

SW
10

4T
H

AV
E

SW
CHESAPEAKE DR

SW
 APACHE DR

SW
LU

MBEE LN

SW
 10

6T
H 

AV
E

SW WICHITA ST

SW TALAWA DR

SW
 58

TH
 TE

R

SW
11

0T
HP

L

SW UMATILLA ST

SW
 84

TH
 AV

E

SW
BENFIE LD

AVE

SW 98TH AVE

SW SHOSHONE DR

SW SU SQUEHANNA DR

SW
46TH AVE

SW
I N

DI
A N

SP
RI

NG
S

RD

TROUT WAY

SW SIUSLAW LN

SW PORT ORFORD ST

SW
LO

N G
FE

LL
OW

AV
E

SW
 82

ND
 AV

E

SW CHELAN ST

SW
 10

4T
H T

ER

CHILDS RD

SW
10

6T
HA

VE

SW
B E

L M
O R

E A
VE

RI
VE

R
RU

N
DR

SW
MO

HA
VE

CT

S W
92

ND
TE

R

SW WICHITA ST

SW
 11

5T
H 

AV
E

SW
 93

RD
 TE

R

SW MORATOC DR

SW KOLLER ST

SW BLAKE ST

SW
MA

ND
AN

DR

SW DAKOTA DR

SW LEE ST

SW APALACHEE ST

SW
71STAVE

SW COQUILLE DR

SW
69

TH
ST

SW TAYLORS DR

SW
 97

TH
 AV

E

SW DELAWARE ST

CENTERWOOD ST

SW EDGEWOOD ST

SW WILKE RD

SW
TE

RR
YA

VE

SW ALSEA DR

CANAL RD

SW
 93

RD
 AV

E

SW
 60

TH
 AV

E

SW NATCHEZ ST
SW

 10
5T

H 
AV

E

SW TENINO LN

SW NATCHEZ ST

SW NYBERG ST

SW KIOWA ST

SW
 10

3R
D 

CT

SW
 90TH AVE

SW
 56

TH
 AV

E

SW HELENIUS ST

SW KINGFISHER WAY

S W
72

ND
AV

E

SW
LO

NG
FE

L L
OW

A V
E

SW KENNY ST

SW
57

TH
AV

E

SW MARILYN ST

SW
LODGEPOLEAVE

SW
10

8T
H

A V
E

SW SILETZ DR

SW DOGWOOD DR

SW
90

TH
CT

SW AVERY ST

SW NELSON ST

OLD GATE RD

SW SWEEK DR

SW BRIDGEPORT RD

SW ELLMAN LN

SW
86

T H
AV

E

SW BANNOCH ST

CHAD DR

SW
 B

OO
NE

S 
FE

RR
Y R

D

SW GRAM ST

SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

SW
68TH

AVE

SW ITEL ST

LAKEVIEW BLVD

SW

TYGH LOOP

SW IBACH ST

SW MAKAH CT

SW
SH

AS
TA

TR
L

SW SEMINOLE TR
L

SW EVANS CT

SW
10

2N
D

PL

SW NORWOOD RD

I-5
 FW

Y

SW
SHENANDOAH WAY

SW STARR DR

SW
 B

EN
FIE

LD
 AV

E

SW NYBERG ST

SW
CHEY ENN E

WAY

SW
MAKAHST

SW
70

TH
AV

E

SW COTTONWOOD ST

SW
 TY

GH
 LO

OP

SW DAWN ST

SW
 11

0T
H 

AV
E

SW
 65

TH
 AV

E

SW
11

2TH

AV
E

SW MI LLER CT

S W FERNBROOK WAY

SW SAGERT ST

SW
MANDAN

DR

S W
57

TH
AV

E

SW CHILDS RD

SW MYSLONY ST

SW
MA

RT
IN

AZ
ZI

AV
E

SW HERMAN RD

SW COLUMBIA DR

IN
DI

AN
CR

E E
KDR

SW
 P

ILK
IN

GT
ON

 R
D

SW GRAHAMS FERRY RD

BL
AC

KF
OO

T D
R

SW
MA

RTIN
AZZI AVE

SW
91

ST
AV

E
SW NESTUCCA

SW
 87TH CT

SW
 89TH

SW
9 2ND

AL
SE

A C
TMOLALLA

10
0T

H 
DR

10
3R

D 
CT

10
2N

D 
CT

S W
95

T H
CT

COQUILLE

UMPQUA

YACHATS

TALAWA CT 91ST

PAMLICO

JAMECO

HURONMARTINAZZI CT

86TH CT

SW
SU

NDE

TO
NOPAH CT

NEZ PERCE CT
SW RARITAN CT

SW COMANCHE WAY

MODOC CT

85TH CT

SANTIAM DR

SW
 TILLAMOOK CT

SW LOGAN LN

NISQUALLY CT

SHOSHONE

YAKIMA

CHE LAN CT

ERIE CT

CHICKASAW CT

KICKAPOO CT CONCHO CT

CHICKASAW DR

AS
PE

N 
PL

PLUM

WINEMA S W WILLAPA CT

CO
LV

ILL
E

84
TH

 C
T

SW MCKINNEY ST

SW
 10

9T
H 

TE
R

WESTFALL CT

SW
 10

5T
H

SW
 10

6T
H 

AV
E

LUSTER

SW
 10

4T
H 

AV
E

CROW
WAY

SITKA

MIAMI

SW ENO PL

SW ALABAMA ST

SW
IOWA DR

SW IOWA DR

SW STONO DR

SW PALOUSE LN

SKOKOMISH

94
TH

 TE
R QUINAULTLN SW

 90
TH

 P
LSW

 92ND PL 89TH PL
89TH AVE

SW S TONO DR

MARICOPADR

SW
 P

IN
TO

 D
R

SW TACHI CT

MA
ND

AN CT

SW

S W LUMMI ST

OZETTE
DAKOTA

CHRISTENSENCT

SW
 D

AK
OT

A CIR

CR
EE

K

SW OSAGE ST

AR
APA

HO

SW
CT

SW

SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

SW TUALATIN RD

SW
 TUALATIN RD

SW
 BO

ON
ES

 FE
RR

Y R
D

SW LO
WER BOONES FERRY RDSW KALISPELL ST

SW LUCAS DR

ROBERTS CT
SW

SW
ELMER CT

SW GARRETT ST

11
3T

H A
VE

11
4T

H A
VE

SW
 11

2T
H 

AV
E

SW
 11

1T
H 

AV
E

SW
 10

8T
H 

PL

SW TUNICA ST

WINYA CT
SW

WINTU CTSW

WISHRAM CT
SW

SW 11
0T

H
PL

KIOWA CT
SW

SW

SW

PU
EBLO CT

BANNOCHCT SWLADD
CT

SWANDERSONCT

SW
TAWASACT

SWCASTEELCT

SW FULTON DR

SW
 10

7T
H 

AV
E

LUCAS CT
SW

SW
 SI

OU
X C

T

SW
 TE

TO
N 

AV
E

SW
 TE

TO
N 

AV
E

SW POTANO ST

SW CHEROKEE ST

SW
 93

RD
 TE

R

SW
CASCARALN

SW BOONES FERRY RD

SWMO
B IL

EP
L

SW
56

TH
 P

L

SW
 53RD

AVE

SWCHESAPEAKE
CT

SW
53

RD
 C

T

SW
52

ND
 C

T

SW
49

TH
 C

T

SWJOSHUA CT

SW
NAVAJO CT

SW
 49TH AVE

SW TAPOSA PL

GREENWOOD
SW
PL

MALS
AMSW

CT

BUSHBAUM
SWCT

SW
 S

EQ
UO

IA 
DR

SW 57
TH TE
R

SW
55

TH
 TE

R

SW
54

TH
 TE

R

S W S AN
TE

EC
T

NAPA
SW

NAPA CT
SW

HOPI CT 68
TH

 AV
E

SW SW

SW
7 2

N D
A V

E

WASHO CT

SW COHOCT

SWTEN INO
CT

SWOTTAWAST

SWPOTOMACST

SW
 65

TH
 AV

E

SW BORLAND RD

DR

I-5
 FW

Y

I-5
 FW

Y

I-205 FWY

CO
MA

NC
HE

SW

TER

SW CTSWSW

SW

SW

PONDEROSASW
LN

SW
CT

SW

AV
E

SWCT

CT
SW

SW

PL

SW
LN

SW

SW

SW
SW

SW

SW SW
CT CT

CTSW

SW
CT

SW

SW
CT

CT
SW

SW

SWCT

CT

92N
D A

VE
SW

CA
YU S E

CT

SW

CT

CT

CT
CT

CT
SW

SW

SW

SW

SW

SW

SW OLD TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

REDHAWK
SW
CTSW 79

TH PLSW 80
TH PL

SW 81
ST PL

SW CT SW CT
TH

IST
LE

BR
OO

K

BR
AN

DY
SH

IR
E

10
5T

H
CT

CHEHAL
IS

KL
IC

KI
TA

T

AR
IKA

RA

OHOP HUME
CHERAWSW

SW

SW

SW
SW

SWCT

CT

CT

CT

CT

CT

CT
SW

SWCT

CTSW

SWCT SW

KI L
LA

RN
EY

SW CT

SW

SW
CTSW

SW SW

SW

SWSW

SW

SW 52
ND AV
E

SW TANOAK LN

SWCASTEELST

SW 10
9T

H
AV

E

SW PACIFIC HWY - 99W

WILLAPA
SWWAY

SAMPSONSW
LN

SW CHINOOK ST

86TH
SWAVE

YA
NK

TO
N

PLSW

SW CHERRY LN

SW
MART I NAZZ I A VE

SW
 99

TH
AV

E

SW CIMINO ST

110TH
SW

PL

SW NORSE HALL RD

SW DELKER RD

PROSPERITYPARK

SW
 70

TH
 AV

E

SW
 65

TH
 AV

E

SW
 12

8T
H 

AV
E

SW
B O

ON
ES

FE
RR

YR
D

RAYBORN CTSW

AV
E

11
0T

H
SW PL

10
9T

H
SW TE

R

10
6T

H
SW PL

ARAPAHO
SW DR

SW
 G

RA
HA

MS
 FE

RR
Y R

D

S W
90

T H
PL

SW NASOMA LN

2017 Pavement Improvements

I
SLURRY SEAL
OVERLAY

§̈¦205

§̈¦5



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Carrie Severson, Management Analyst II

DATE: 05/22/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Ordinance No. 1399-17 Relating To Utility Facilities In The
Rights-Of-Way; Adding New Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 3-6 And Repealing
Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 10-1 (Telecommunications)

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consideration of Ordinance No. 1399-17  Relating To Utility Facilities In The Rights-Of-Way;
Adding New Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 3-6 And Repealing Tualatin Municipal Code
Chapter 10-1 (Telecommunications).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council consider approval of Ordinance 1399-17 Relating To
Utility Facilities In The Rights-Of-Way; Adding New Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 3-6 And
Repealing Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 10-1 (Telecommunications).

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This Ordinance, if adopted, implements comprehensive regulations intended to: establish clear
guidelines, standards and requirements for all utilities that request to operate in the City's
rights-of- way; ensure local authority to manage the rights-of-way for the benefit, health, and
safety of local residents and businesses; and assure the ability to receive adequate
compensation to local taxpayers for the private use of the City’s public rights-of-way. The
Ordinances’ requirements are designed to be limited and streamlined, while preserving the
city's home-rule authority, and consistent with the regulations adopted by cities in the region
and throughout the State.

Staff met with City Council on February 27th and April 10th to discuss challenges managing the
public’s rights-of-way and some of the potential benefits of shifting management from
individually negotiated franchise agreements to an ordinance. Benefits of the Ordinance include
providing a tool to enhance knowledge of who, what, when, and where the rights-of-way are
used, ability to manage impacts to motorized and non-motorized transportation infrastructure,
improved consistency in expectations for rights-of-way users, increased compliance, lower City
costs for negotiating individual franchises, the ability to make timely adjustments to rights-of-way
use, and continue to allow flexibility of rights-of-way use based on the public interest.



The Ordinance is consistent with other ordinances around the region and across the State.
Examples from other cities have resulted in increased public benefits from enacting such an
Ordinance and the disclosure of multiple users of the rights-of-way who were previously not
authorized or paying for its use. For example, Oregon City has had a right-of-way ordinance in
place for three years. Before the right-of-way ordinance was adopted, they had 14 franchise
agreements and now have 38 rights-of-way licenses issued to rights-of-way users. The City of
Milwaukie had 6 franchise agreements, and to-date has issued licenses for 12 additional users,
and is in the process of gaining compliance from another 16 rights-of-way users.

In the process of providing the draft ordinance to our existing franchise agreement stakeholders
and partners, staff found several of our contacts were outdated for the organization and a few
companies we have franchise agreements with, have been sold to another company without a
change to the agreement or updated information provided to the City.

Based on the feedback we received from our utility partners, we made three notable changes to
the ordinance:

- The first was to remove the registration component. The purpose of the registration is to know
who is operating in or using the rights-of-way so we can have their contact information and
understand the types of services operating through that use. This appeared duplicative with the
City’s already existing Business License requirement in TMC 9-01. As a result, in this
ordinance, we included a reference to the  business license requirement in TMC9-01, in place
of the registration.  
- The second change was to extend the time for utilities to remit compensation for use of the
rights-of-way. The draft ordinance proposed 30 days to be consistent with  regional ordinances,
which stated that the entity had 30 days or they a timeframe otherwise agreed upon in writing
by the City. Based on feedback from our utility partners, this version of the ordinance requires
payment within 45 days, which is more frequent than the annual remittance requirement in our
current franchise agreements.
- The third change included in this ordinance was to move the annual construction coordination
meeting from January to March. Our goal with this portion of the ordinance is to provide the best
coordination between the City and others who are planning major projects within the public
rights of way, to improve partnership and reduce impacts to motorized and non-motorized traffic
and infrastructure. While we recognize a loss in lead time, we may gain the potential to improve
coordination and mitigation of impacts.

We had requests from several utilities to exclude certain types of services that use the
rights-of-way from the ordinance. Excluding those services entirely, would: 

Inhibit our ability to know which utilities use the rights of way
Reduce the accuracy of contact information, the types of services being operated in the
rights-of-way, and locations of utilities within the rights-of-way
Remove permitting requirements we might want to use to manage impacts
Remove the authority of this and future councils to make policy decisions regarding
compensation and other conditions.

By requiring all utilities to comply with this ordinance, the City reserves the right to adopt policies
regarding fees, construction requirements, or other requirements or issues by resolution at a
future date.

This ordinance is intended to enable the City to more easily and consistently manage our
rights-of-way so we know who is using our rights–of-way, understand how it is being used,



maintain current contact information for those using the rights-of-way, know where utilities are
located, and reduce impacts to traffic and city facilities.     

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Approval of the Ordinance will provide a framework for managing rights-of-way use without the
need for individual negotiation of franchise agreements, increase knowledge about rights-of-way
use and users,  improve consistency in requirements for users, enhance the City’s ability to
make decisions on managing impacts, and allow existing and future City Councils to set policy
decisions on practices, compensation and other aspects of use.

This Ordinance also repeals 10-1 (Telecommunications). That code currently requires franchise
agreements with Telecommunications providers as well as management and construction
requirements in the rights-of-way. 

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
An alternative could be to continue to use the franchise agreement tools currently in place. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
There are no financial implications as a result of the Ordinance. Rights-of-way users with
existing franchise agreements will not be subject to the Ordinance, if the terms of the Ordinance
conflict with their franchise agreements. Once their franchise agreement expires, the current
franchisees will be subject to the full requirements of the Ordinance. If the Ordinance is
adopted, the Council will need to consider the financial implications in implementing the
Licenses and Fees provided for under the Ordinance. This will be done through a Council
resolution process.

Attachments: Ordinance 1399-17
Row Ordinance Presentation



ORDINANCE  NO.1399-17 
 
AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO UTILITY FACILITIES IN THE RIGHTS-OF-WAY; 
ADDING NEW TUALATIN MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 3-6 AND REPEALING 
TUALATIN MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 10-1 (TELECOMMUNICATIONS)  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin has constitutional and Charter authority to 
manage its rights-of-way and receive compensation for use of the rights-of-way 
consistent with applicable federal and state law; 
 

WHEREAS, the City has traditionally used the individually-negotiated franchise 
process to allow each utility using the City's rights-of-way to provide utility service; 
 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it can more effectively, efficiently, fairly 
and uniformly manage the City's rights-of-way and provide consistent standards for 
utility use of the rights-of-way through licenses rather than franchises;  
  

WHEREAS, new Tualatin Municipal Code (TMC) Chapter 3-6 is intended govern 
the City’s management of its rights-of-way; 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of this Ordinance, TMC 10-1 is no longer needed; and 

  
WHEREAS, the City finds it is in the public interest to enact the changes to the 

TMC as set forth in this Ordinance. 
 
THE CITY OF TUALATIN ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 3-6 is added to the Tualatin 
Municipal Code as follows: 
 
3-6-010 Purpose and Intent.  
The purpose and intent of this Chapter is to: 
 
(1) Permit and manage reasonable access to the City’s rights-of-way for utility purposes 
and conserve the limited physical capacity of those rights-of-way, which are held in trust 
by the City, consistent with applicable state and federal law; 
 
(2)  Assure the City is fully compensated for the City’s costs of granting access to, and 
regulating the use of rights-of-way, from the persons seeking access and causing such 
costs; 
 
(3)  Secure fair and reasonable compensation for the City and its residents, who have 
invested millions of dollars in public funds to build and maintain the rights-of-way, from 
persons who generate revenue from the placing of facilities in the City’s rights-of-way 
and charging the public for services delivered by those facilities in the City’s rights-of-
way; 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 1 of 23 
 



  
(4)  Assure all utility companies, persons, and other entities owning or operating 
facilities, or providing services within the City, register and comply with City ordinances, 
rules, and regulations; 
 
(5)  Assure the City can continue to fairly and responsibly protect the public health, 
safety, and welfare of its residents, and the structural integrity of its rights-of-way, when 
a primary cause for the early and excessive deterioration of the rights-of-way is the 
frequent excavation by persons whose facilities are located within the City’s rights-of-
way; 
 
(6)  Enhance the safety and aesthetics in the City’s rights-of-way; and 
 
(7)  Encourage the provision of advanced and competitive utility services on the widest 
possible basis to businesses and residents of the City. 
 
3-06-020 Jurisdiction and Management of the Public Rights-of-Way. 
(1)  Under authority of the City Charter and state law, the City has jurisdiction of, and 
exercises regulatory management over, all rights-of-way within the City, whether 
acquired by fee, easement, or other legal interest, and whether the legal interest was 
obtained by grant, dedication, prescription, reservation, condemnation, annexation, 
foreclosure, or other means. 
 
(2)  The exercise of jurisdiction and regulatory management of the rights-of-way by the 
City is not official acceptance of the rights-of-way, and does not obligate the City to 
maintain or repair any part of the rights-of-way. 
 
(3)  The provisions of this Chapter are subject to and will be applied consistent with 
applicable state and federal laws, rules and regulations. To the maximum extent 
practicable all regulatory and judicial interpretations of this Chapter must be interpreted 
to be consistent with such laws, rules, and regulations. 
 
3-06-030  Regulatory Fees and Compensation Not a Tax. 
(1)  All City fees and costs charged under this Chapter are separate from, and in 
addition to, any and all other federal, state, local and City charges, including any permit 
fee, or any other generally applicable fee, tax, or charge on the business, occupation, 
property, or income, as may be levied, imposed or due from a utility operator, its 
customers or subscribers, or on account of the lease, sale, delivery, or transmission of 
utility services. 
 
(2)  The City has determined that any fee provided for by this Chapter is not subject to 
the property tax limitations of Article XI, Sections 11 and 11(b) of the Oregon 
Constitution. These fees are not imposed on property or property owners. 
 
3-06-050  Definitions.  
Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words and phrases mean: 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 2 of 23 
 



(1)  "Cable service" means the one-way transmission to subscribers of: (i) video 
programming, or (ii) other programming service; and subscriber interaction, if any, which 
is required for the selection or use of such video programming or other programming 
service and is to be defined consistent with federal laws 
 
(2) "City" means the City of Tualatin, an Oregon municipal corporation, and individuals 
authorized to act on the City's behalf. 
 
(3)  "City Council" means the elected governing body of the City of Tualatin, Oregon. 
 
(4)  "City facilities" means City or publicly-owned structures or equipment located within 
the rights-of-way or public easement used for governmental purposes. 
 
(5)  "City Manager" means the City Manager for the City of Tualatin, or designee. 
  
(6)  "Communications services" means any service provided for the purpose of 
transmission of information including, but not limited to, voice, video, or data, without 
regard to the transmission protocol employed, whether or not the transmission medium 
is owned by the provider itself. Communications services includes all forms of telephone 
services, voice, video, data, or information transport, but does not include: (a) cable 
service; (b) open video system service, as defined in 47 C.F.R. 76; (c) over-the-air radio 
or television broadcasting to the public-at-large from facilities licensed by the Federal 
Communications Commission or any successor thereto; (d) public communications 
systems; and (e) direct-to-home satellite service within the meaning of Section 602 of 
the Telecommunications Act. 
 
(7)  "License" means the authorization granted by the City to a utility operator pursuant 
to this Chapter. 
 
(8)  "Person" means and includes any individual, firm, sole proprietorship, corporation, 
company, partnership, co-partnership, joint-stock company, trust, limited liability 
company, association, local service district, governmental entity, or other organization, 
including any natural person or any other legal entity. 
 
(9)  "Public communications system" means any system owned or operated by a 
government entity or entities for their exclusive use for internal communications or 
communications with other government entities, and includes services provided by the 
state of Oregon pursuant to ORS 190.240 and 283.140. "Public communications 
system" does not include any system used for sale or resale, including trade, barter, or 
other exchange of value, of communications services or capacity on the system, directly 
or indirectly, to any person. 
 
(10) "Public utility easement" means the space in, upon, above, along, across, over, or 
under an easement for the construction, reconstruction, operation, maintenance, 
inspection, or repair of utility facilities. "Public utility easement" does not include any of 
the following: (i) an easement that has been privately acquired by a utility operator; (ii) 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 3 of 23 
 



an easement acquired solely for the construction, reconstruction, operation, 
maintenance, inspection, and repair of City facilities; and an easement granted to the 
City where its terms do not allow, or is inconsistent with, the proposed use by the utility 
operator. 
 
(11)  "Rights of way" means and includes, but is not limited to, the space in, upon, 
above, along, across, over, or under the public streets, roads, highways, lanes, courts, 
ways, alleys, boulevards, bridges, trails, paths, sidewalks, bicycle lanes, public utility 
easements, and all other public ways or areas, including the subsurface under and air 
space over these areas, but does not include parks, parkland, or other City property not 
generally open to the public for travel. This definition applies only to the extent of the 
City's right, title, interest, and authority to grant a license to occupy and use such areas 
for utility facilities. 
 
(12)  "State" means the state of Oregon. 
  
(13)  "Utility facility" or "facility" means any physical component of a system, including 
but not limited to the poles, pipes, mains, conduits, ducts, junction boxes, vaults, 
structures cables, wires, transmitters, plants, equipment, and other facilities, located 
within, under, or above the rights-of-way, any portion of which is used or designed to be 
used to deliver, transmit, or otherwise provide utility service. 
 
(14)  "Utility operator" or "operator" means any person who owns, places, operates, or 
maintains a utility facility or utility service within the City. 
 
(15)  "Utility service" means the provision, by means of utility facilities located within, 
under, or above the rights-of-way, whether or not such facilities are owned by the 
service provider of electricity, natural gas, communications services, cable services, 
water, sewer, or storm sewer to or from customers within the corporate boundaries of 
the City, or the transmission of any of these services through the City, whether or not 
customers within the City are served by those transmissions. 
 
(16)  "Work" means the construction, demolition, installation, replacement, repair, 
maintenance, or relocation of any utility facility, including but not limited to any 
excavation and restoration required in association with such construction, demolition, 
installation, replacement, repair, maintenance, or relocation. 
 
3-6-100 Rights-of-Way Fee.  
(1) A Rights-of-Way Fee, as determined by resolution of the Council, must be paid by: 

 
(a) Every person that owns utility facilities in the City’s rights-of-way; and  

 
(b) Every person that uses utility facilities in the City’s rights-of-way to provide 
utility service, regardless of whether or not the person owns the utility facilities 
used to provide the utility services, and regardless of whether or not customers 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 4 of 23 
 



within the City are served by those facilities. 
 

(2) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the City, the Rights-of-Way Fee must be paid 
quarterly, in arrears, for each quarter during the term of the license. Payment must be 
received by the City within 45 days after the end of each calendar quarter, and must be 
accompanied by an accounting of gross revenues, if applicable, and a calculation of the 
amount payable.  
 
(3) In the event the Rights-of-Way Fee is not received by the City on or before the due 
date or is underpaid, the utility operator must pay interest from the due date until full 
payment is received by the City at a rate equal to nine percent (9%) per annum, 
compounded daily, or the maximum interest rate allowed by law.  
 
(4) The calculation of the Rights-of-Way Fee required by this section is subject to all 
applicable limitations imposed by federal or state law. 
 
(5) The Rights-of-Way Fee payments required by this section will be reduced by any 
franchise fee payments received by the City, but in no case will the Rights-of-Way Fee 
be less than zero dollars ($0). 
 
(6) The City reserves the right to enact other fees and taxes applicable to the utility 
operators subject to this Chapter. Unless expressly permitted by the City in enacting 
such fee or tax, or required by applicable state or federal law, no utility operator may 
deduct, offset or otherwise reduce or avoid the obligation to pay any lawfully enacted 
fees or taxes based on the payment of the Rights-of-Way Fee or any other fees 
required by this Chapter. 
 
3-6-120 Attachment Fee.   
(1) A utility operator must pay an Attachment Fee, as set by resolution of the Council, 
for each attachment if: 
 

(a) The utility operator only has facilities in the rights-of-way that are mounted on 
structures within the rights-of-way; 

 
(b) The structures on which the facilities are mounted are owned by another 
person; and 

 
(c) The utility operator does not have any facilities strung between such 
structures or otherwise within, under, or above the rights-of-way.  

 
(2) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the City, the Attachment Fee must be paid 
annually, in arrears, for each year during the term of the license within thirty (30) days 
after the end of each calendar year, and must be accompanied by information sufficient 
to illustrate the calculation of the amount payable. The utility operator must pay interest 
at a rate of nine percent (9%) per year for any payment made after the due date. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 5 of 23 
 



(3) Payment of the Attachment Fee does not authorize an attachment to be located on a 
structure without the structure owner’s consent. Separate consent must be negotiated 
with the owner of the structure, regardless of whether the owner is a private or public 
entity.  
 
3-6-200  Business License Required.  
Every person who wants to provide utility services to customers within the City must 
acquire a business license from the City, as provided in TMC 9-01. In addition to the 
information required to be submitted for a business license, a person who wants to 
provide utility service, must also provide a description of the type, or types, of utility 
services to be provided. 
 
3-6-205  Rights-of-Way Licenses. 
(1)  Rights-of-Way License Required. Every person must obtain a rights-of-way 
license from the City prior to conducting any work in the rights-of-way or placing any 
utility facilities in the rights-of-way. 
 
(2)  License Application. The license application must be on a form provided by the 
City and contain the following: 
 

(a) The name, address, and telephone number of the person seeking a license; 
 

(b) The corporate governing structure, including all parent and subsidiary 
businesses, along with all “doing business as” names. 

 
(c) Whether the person is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or 
other legal status of the person; 

 
(d) A description of the type of utility services provided or to be provided; 

 
(e) The authorization to do business in Oregon,  

 
(f) A list of facilities and their locations within the City, in a manner acceptable to 
the City;   

 
(g) Any other documents or information required by the City to identify the 
person, its legal status, its authorization to do business in Oregon, its facilities, or 
to determine the applicant's ability to comply with the terms of this Chapter; 

 
(h) Payment of the nonrefundable license application fee. 

 
(3) License Application Fee  
Each application for a rights-of-way license must be accompanied by a nonrefundable 
license fee, in an amount to be determined by resolution of the Council, sufficient to fully 
recover all of the City's costs of administering the license program. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 6 of 23 
 



3-6-210  License Determination by City.  
(1)The City will evaluate the license application based upon the provisions of this 
Chapter, the continuing capacity of the rights-of-way to accommodate the applicant's 
proposed utility facilities, and the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 
regulations, and policies. 
 
(2) Within 90 days of receipt of a completed application, the City must issue a written 
determination granting or denying the license in whole or in part. If the license is denied, 
the written determination must include the reasons for denial.  
 
(3) If the City determines that an applicant is in violation of the terms of this Chapter at 
the time it submits its application, the City may require the applicant to cure the violation 
or submit a detailed plan to cure the violation before the City will consider the 
application or grant the license.  
 
(4) If the City requires the applicant to cure or submit a plan to cure a violation, the City 
will grant or deny the license application within 90 days of confirming that the violation 
has been cured or of accepting the applicant’s plan to cure the violation. 
 
3-6-220  Rights Granted to Licensee.  
(1)  A license granted under this Chapter authorizes and permits the licensee to 
construct, place, maintain, and operate utility facilities in the rights-of-way for the term of 
the license, subject to the provisions of City code, including any amendments which 
may be enacted during the term of the license, and other applicable provisions of state 
and federal law. 
 
(2) Each license granted under this Chapter authorizes only those utility facilities or 
services applied for and approved by the City. The City may approve the provision of 
multiple services in one license. 
 
(3)  A license granted under this Chapter may not be assigned or transferred, except as 
permitted by this Chapter. 
 
(4) A license granted under this Chapter does not grant, convey, create, or vest in a 
licensee any real property interest in land, including any fee, leasehold interest, or 
easement, and does not convey equitable or legal title in the rights-of-way. 
 
(5)  The issuance of a license does not constitute a waiver or bar to the City’s exercise 
of any governmental right or power, including without limitation the City’s police powers 
and regulatory powers, regardless of whether such powers existed before or after the 
license is issued. 
 
3-6-225  Term of License.  A license granted under this Chapter will remain in effect for 
a term of five years, unless sooner terminated as provided in this Chapter. 
 
3-6-230   License Nonexclusive.   

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 7 of 23 
 



(1)  A license granted under this Chapter does not confer any exclusive right, privilege, 
license, or franchise to occupy or use the rights-of-way for delivery of utility services or 
any other purpose. The City expressly reserves the right to grant licenses, franchises, or 
other rights to other persons, as well as the City's right to use the rights-of-way for 
similar or different purposes.  
 
(2) A license granted under this Chapter is subject to all recorded deeds, easements, 
dedications, conditions, covenants, restrictions, encumbrances, and claims of title of 
record that may affect the rights-of-way.  
 
3-6-240  Reservation of City Rights.  
(1) The City reserves all rights, title, and interest in its rights-of-way. A license granted 
under this Chapter does not prevent the City from exercising any of its rights, including 
but not limited to grading, paving, repairing, or altering any rights-of-way, constructing, 
laying down, repairing, relocating, or removing City facilities, or establishing any other 
public work, utility, or improvement of any kind, including repairs, replacement, or 
removal of any City facilities.  
 
(2) If a licensee's utility facility interferes with the construction, repair, replacement, 
alteration, or removal of any rights-of-way, public work, City use of the rights-of-way, 
City utility, City improvement, or City facility, except those providing utility services in 
competition with a licensee, licensee's facilities must be removed or relocated as 
provided in this Chapter, in a manner acceptable to the City and consistent with City 
and industry engineering standards, environmental laws and regulations, and safety 
laws and regulations. 
 
3-6-245   Multiple Services.  
(1)  A utility operator that provides or transmits or allows the provision or transmission of 
utility services and other services over its facilities is subject to the license and Rights-
of-Way Fee requirements of this Chapter for the portion of the facilities and extent of 
utility services delivered over those facilities.  
 
(2)  A utility operator that provides or transmits more than one utility service over its 
facilities is not required to obtain a separate license for each utility service, provided the 
license granted by the City authorizes the multiple utility services provided and the utility 
operator pays the applicable Rights-of-Way fee for each utility service provided. 
 
(3) A utility operator may lease capacity on or in its systems to third parties, provided 
the utility operator provides the City with the name and business address of any third 
party lessee. A utility operator is not required to provide such information if disclosure is 
prohibited by applicable law. 
 
(4) A utility operator is not required to pay the license or Rights-of-Way Fee owed to the 
City by the third party that leases capacity of the utility operator's facilities. 
 
3-6-250  Transfer or Assignment.  

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 8 of 23 
 



(1) A licensee must obtain the written consent of the City prior to the transfer or 
assignment of a license, unless state or federal law specifically prohibits the City from 
requiring its prior written consent. 
 
(2) A transfer or assignment will only be authorized if the proposed transferee or 
assignee is authorized under all applicable federal, state, and local laws to own or 
operate the utility system and the transfer or assignment is approved by all agencies or 
organizations required or authorized under federal, state, and local to approve such 
transfer or assignment.  
 
(3) Upon a license being transferred or assigned, the transferee or assignee 
immediately becomes responsible for fulfilling all obligations under the license, including 
all facilities.  
 
3-6-260  Rights-of-Way License Renewal.  
(1) License Renewal.  At least 120 days before the expiration of a license, a licensee 
seeking renewal of its rights-of-way license must submit a rights-of-way license renewal 
application on forms provided by the City and provide the following: 
 

(a) The name, address, and telephone number of the person seeking a license; 
 
(b) The corporate governing structure, including all parent and subsidiary 
businesses, along with all “doing business as” names. 

 
(c) Whether the person is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or 
other legal status of the person; 

 
(d) A description of the type of utility services provided or to be provided; 
 
(e) The authorization to do business in Oregon,  

 
(f) A list of facilities and their locations within the City;   

 
(g) Any other documents or information required by the City to identify the 
person, its legal status, its authorization to do business in Oregon, its facilities, or 
to determine the applicant's ability to comply with the terms of this Chapter; 

 
(h) Payment of the nonrefundable license renewal application fee. 

 
(2) License Renewal Application Fee. Each renewal application for a rights-of-way 
license must be accompanied by a nonrefundable license renewal fee, in an amount to 
be determined by resolution of the Council. 
 
(3) Renewal Criteria. The City will evaluate the license renewal application based upon 
the provisions of this Chapter, the continuing capacity of the rights-of-way to 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 9 of 23 
 



accommodate the applicant's proposed utility facilities, and the applicable federal, state 
and local laws, rules, regulations, and policies. 
 
(4) Renewal Determination by City.  Within 90 days of receipt of a completed 
application, the City must issue a written determination granting or denying the license 
renewal in whole or in part. If the license renewal is denied, the written determination 
must include the reasons for denial.  
 
(5) Requirement to Cure Violations. If the City determines that a licensee is in 
violation of the terms of this Chapter at the time it submits its renewal application, the 
City may require the applicant to cure the violation or submit a detailed plan to cure the 
violation before the City will consider the renewal application or grant the license 
renewal.  
 
(6) Determination after Violation Cured. If the City requires the licensee to cure or 
submit a plan to cure a violation, the City will grant or deny the license application within 
90 days of confirming that the violation has been cured or of accepting the applicant’s 
plan to cure the violation. 
 
3-6-265  Revocation or Termination of a License.  
(1) The Council may terminate or revoke the license granted under this Chapter for any 
of the following reasons: 

 
(a)Violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter; 
 
(b) Any violation of local, state, or federal law, including but not limited to Clean 
Water Services regulations; 
 
(c)Violation of any provision of the license; 
 
(d) Fraud or misrepresentation to a City official, including but not limited to in a 
license application, permit application, or other document submitted to the City; 
 
(e) Failure to pay taxes, compensation, fees, or costs due the City after final 
determination of the taxes, compensation, fees, or costs; 
 
(f) Failure to restore the rights-of-way, as required by this Chapter or other 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations; 
 
(g) Failure to comply with technical, safety, and engineering standards related to 
work in the rights-of-way; or 
 
(h) Failure to obtain or maintain any and all licenses, permits, certifications, and 
other authorizations required by local, state, or federal law for the placement, 
maintenance, or operation of the utility facilities. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 10 of 23 
 



(2) In determining whether to terminate, revoke, or impose a sanction, the Council must 
consider the following factors:  

 
(a) Whether the violation was intentional, knowing, reckless, or negligent; 
 
(b) The seriousness of the violation; 
 
(c) The harm caused; 
 
(d) The compliance history of the utility operator; and 
 
(e) The utility operator's cooperation in discovering, informing the City, admitting 
to, and curing the violation. 

 
(3) Before terminating a license, the City must give the utility operator written notice of 
any apparent violations and an opportunity to cure. The notice must include a clear and 
concise statement of the nature and general facts of the violation or noncompliance and 
provide a reasonable time of not to exceed 30 days, or other period of time the City 
determines is reasonable, for the utility operator to demonstrate that the utility operator 
has remained in compliance, that the utility operator has cured or is in the process of 
curing any violation or noncompliance, or that it would be in the public interest to impose 
a penalty or sanction less than termination or revocation.  
 
(4) If the utility operator is in the process of curing a violation or noncompliance, the 
utility operator must demonstrate that it acted promptly and continues to actively work 
on compliance.  
 
(5) If the utility operator does not respond to the notice of violation or does not cure the 
violation within the reasonable time allowed, the City Manager will refer the matter to the 
Council, which must provide a duly noticed public hearing to determine whether the 
license should be terminated or revoked. 
 
3-6-270  Franchise Agreements.  
(1) If the public interest warrants, the City may enter into a written franchise agreement 
with a utility operator.  
 
(2) The franchise terms may clarify, enhance, expand, waive, or vary the provisions of 
this Chapter, consistent with applicable state and federal law. Unless specifically 
modified or waived by the terms of a franchise, the provisions of this Chapter control.  
 
(3) All franchise agreements must be reviewed and approved by Council by special 
ordinance.   
 
3-6-300  Construction and Restoration Activities. 
(1) Construction Codes. Utility facilities must be constructed, installed, operated, and 
maintained in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local codes, rules, and 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 11 of 23 
 



regulations, including without limitation the National Electrical Code, the National 
Electrical Safety Code, state building code, state plumbing code, state fire code, the 
City's Public Works Construction Code, Clean Water Services Design and Construction 
standards, Occupational Safety and Health laws, the Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements, and state utility locate requirements.  
 
(2) Construction Permits. No person may perform any work on utility facilities within 
the rights-of-way without first obtaining all required permits. The City cannot issue a 
permit for the construction, installation, maintenance, or repair of utility facilities unless 
the utility operator of the facilities has registered and applied for and received the 
license required by this Chapter, or has a current franchise with the City, and all 
applicable fees have been paid. 
 
(3) Emergency. In the event of an emergency, a utility operator with a license granted 
under this Chapter,  or its authorized contractor, may perform work on its utility facilities 
without first obtaining a permit from the City, provided that, to the extent reasonably 
feasible, it attempts to notify the City Manager prior to commencing the emergency work 
and in any event initiates a permit application as soon as reasonably practicable, but not 
later than 12:00 noon of the next business day after commencing the emergency work. 
As used in this subsection, "emergency" means a circumstance in which immediate 
work is necessary to restore lost service or prevent immediate harm to persons or 
property. 
 
(4) Applications for Permits. Applications for permits to construct utility facilities must 
be submitted on forms provided by the City and must be accompanied by drawings, 
plans, and specifications in sufficient detail to demonstrate: 

 
(a)That the facilities will be constructed in accordance with all applicable 
ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations to the satisfaction of the City. 
 
(b) The location and route of all utility facilities to be installed and, if the utility 
operator owns the existing utility poles, a comprehensive summary, including 
ownership, of any and all infrastructure currently attached to the pole. Unless 
approved in writing by the City, the construction of new utility poles is prohibited. 
An existing utility pole that is damaged or failing may be repaired or replaced with 
a new utility pole of substantially similar dimensions and materials. 
 
(c) The location and route of all utility facilities on or in the rights-of-way to be 
located under the surface of the ground, including the line and grade proposed 
for the burial at all points along the route that are within the rights-of-way. 
Applicant's existing utility facilities must be differentiated on the plans from new 
construction. A vertical profile along the proposed utility section must be provided 
showing new and existing utility facilities in relation to the street, curb, sidewalk, 
and rights-of-way. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 12 of 23 
 



(d) The construction methods to be employed for protection of existing structures, 
fixtures and facilities within or adjacent to the rights-of-way, and description of 
any improvements that applicant proposes to temporarily or permanently remove 
or relocate. 
 
(e) All permit applications must be accompanied by the verification of a qualified 
and duly authorized representative of the applicant that the drawings, plans, and 
specifications submitted with the application comply with applicable technical 
codes, rules, and regulations. The City may, in the City’s sole discretion, require 
the verification of a registered professional engineer. 
 
(f) All permit applications must be accompanied by a written construction 
schedule, which must include an estimated start date and completion date of 
construction. The construction schedule is subject to approval by the City. 
 
(g) Prior to issuance of a construction permit, the applicant must pay a 
construction permit fee in the amount determined by resolution of the Council. 

 
(h) If satisfied that the application, plans and documents submitted comply with 
all requirements of this Chapter, the City will issue a permit authorizing 
construction of the utility facilities, subject to such further conditions, restrictions 
or regulations affecting the time, place, and manner of performing the work as 
deemed necessary or appropriate. 

 
(i) Except in the case of an emergency, the permittee must notify the City not less 
than two (2) business days in advance of any excavation or construction in the 
rights-of-way. 

 
(j) All construction practices and activities must be in accordance with the permit 
and approved final plans and specifications for the utility facilities. The City must 
be provided access to the work site and such further information as may be 
required to ensure compliance with such requirements. 

 
(k) All construction activities must comply with the work hours and noise 
regulations of the Public Works Construction Code. 

 
(l) All work that does not comply with the permit, the approved or corrected plans 
and specifications for the work, or the requirements of this Chapter, must be 
removed or corrected at the sole expense of the permittee. The City is authorized 
to stop work in order to assure compliance with the provisions of this Chapter. 

 
(m) The permittee must promptly complete all construction activities so as to 
minimize disruption of the City rights-of-way and other public and private 
property. All construction work within the rights-of-way, including restoration, 
must be completed within 120 days of the date of issuance of the construction 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 13 of 23 
 



permit unless an extension or an alternate schedule has been approved by the 
City. 

 
 
3-6-305  Performance Surety for Construction Activities.  
(1) Before construction is commenced, a performance bond, or other form of surety 
acceptable to the City, equal to at least 125% of the estimated cost of the work within 
the rights-of-way of the City must be provided to the City. The performance bond or 
other form or surety must guarantee, to the satisfaction of the City: 

 
(a) Timely completion of the work; 
 
(a) That the work is performed in compliance with applicable ordinances, plans, 

permits, technical codes, and standards; 
 
(b) Proper location of the facilities as specified by the City; 
 
(d) Restoration to City standards of the rights-of-way and other property affected 
by the work; and 
 
(e) Timely payment and satisfaction of all claims, demands or liens for labor, 
material or services provided in connection with the work.  
 

(2) The performance bond, or other form of surety acceptable to the City, must remain 
in force until substantial completion of the work, including restoration of rights-of-way 
and other property affected by the construction, as determined by the City.  
 
(3) The provisions of this Section do not apply if a franchise agreement is in place with 
the City, or the City otherwise agrees to a different arrangement in writing. 
 
3-6-310  Injury to Persons or Property.  
(1) A utility operator must preserve and protect from injury or damage the public using 
the rights-of-way, other utility operators' facilities in the rights-of-way, and any adjoining 
property, and take other necessary measures to protect life and property, including but 
not limited to sidewalks, streets, buildings, walls, fences, trees, and facilities that may be 
subject to damage from the permitted work.  
 
(2) A utility operator must use suitable barricades, flags, flagging attendants, lights, 
flares, and other measures as required for the safety of all members of the general 
public and must comply with all applicable Americans with Disabilities Act requirements 
and the requirements of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). 
 
(3) A utility operator is responsible for all injury to persons or damage to public or private 
property resulting from its failure to properly protect people and property and to carry 
out the work, regardless of whether the work is performed by a utility operator or 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 14 of 23 
 



performed by an independent contractor performing the work on behalf of the utility 
operator. 
 
3-6-315  Restoration Required.  
(1)  Any utility operator performing work in or affecting the rights-of-way must, at its sole 
expense, promptly restore all rights-of-way and property impacted by the work to the 
same or better condition as existed before the work was undertaken, unless otherwise 
directed by the City. All work must be in accordance with applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations, including the most recent 
Americans with Disabilities Act standards. 
 
(2) If weather or other conditions beyond the utility operator's control do not permit the 
complete restoration required by the City, the utility operator must temporarily restore 
the affected rights-of-way or property. Such temporary restoration must be at the utility 
operator's sole expense and the utility operator must promptly undertake and complete 
the required permanent restoration when the weather or other conditions no longer 
prevent such permanent restoration. Any corresponding modification to the construction 
schedule is subject to approval by the City. 
 
(3) If the utility operator fails to restore rights-of-way or property as required in this 
Chapter, the City will give the utility operator written notice and provide a period of time 
not less than 10 days and not exceeding 30 days, to restore the rights-of-way or 
property. If, after the notice is provided, the utility operator fails to restore the rights-of-
way or property as required in this Chapter, the City must cause such restoration to be 
made at the expense of the utility operator. In cases where the City believes that an 
emergency or threat to public safety exists, it may act without notice to and at the 
expense of the utility operator. Upon receipt of an invoice from the City, the utility 
operator must reimburse the City within 30 days for the costs the City incurred. 
 
(4) The utility operator is responsible for compliance with the provisions of this section, 
regardless of whether the work is performed by a utility operator or performed by an 
independent contractor performing the work on behalf of the utility operator. 
 
3-6-320  Inspection by City.  
Every utility operator's facilities is subject to the right of periodic inspection by the City to 
determine compliance with the provisions of this Chapter and all other applicable state 
and City codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations. Every utility operator must 
cooperate with the City in permitting the inspection of its utility facilities upon request of 
the City. The utility operator must perform all testing, or permit the City to perform any 
testing at the utility operator's expense, required by the City to determine that the 
installation of the utility operator's facilities and the restoration of the rights-of-way 
comply with the terms of this Chapter and applicable federal, state, and local codes, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations. 
 
 
3-6-325  Coordination of Construction.  

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 15 of 23 
 



(1) All utility operators are required to make a good faith effort to cooperate and 
coordinate construction schedules with the City and other users of the rights-of-way. 
 
(2) Prior to March 1 of each year, utility operators must provide the City with a schedule 
of known proposed construction activities for that year that may affect the rights-of-way. 
 
(3) At the City's request, utility operators must meet with the City annually, or as 
determined by the City, to schedule and coordinate construction activities in the rights-
of-way. 
 
(4)  All construction locations, activities, and schedules within the rights-of-way must be 
coordinated as ordered by the City to minimize public inconvenience, disruption or 
damages. 
 
3-6-330  Undergrounding of Facilities Required.  
(1) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City, whenever any existing electric 
utilities, cable facilities or communications facilities are located underground within a 
right of way of the City, a utility operator with permission to occupy the same right of 
way must locate its facilities underground at its own expense.  
 
(2) Whenever all new or existing electric utilities, cable facilities or communication 
facilities are located or relocated underground within a public right of way of the City, a 
utility operator that currently occupies the same public right of way must relocate its 
facilities underground concurrently with the other affected utilities to minimize disruption 
of the public rights-of-way, absent extraordinary circumstances or undue hardship as 
determined by the City and consistent with applicable state and federal law.  
 
3-6-335  Interference with the Rights-of-Way.  
No utility operator or other person may locate or maintain its facilities so as to 
unreasonably interfere with the use of the rights-of-way by the City, by the general 
public or by other persons authorized to use or be present in or upon the rights-of-way. 
All use of the rights-of-way must be consistent with City codes, ordinances, rules, and 
regulations. 
 
3-6-340  Relocation of Utility Facilities.  
(1) When requested to do so in writing by the City, a utility operator must, at no cost to 
the City, temporarily or permanently remove, relocate, change or alter the position of 
any utility facility within a right of way, including relocation of aerial facilities 
underground. 
 
(2) Nothing in this section precludes a utility operator from requesting reimbursement or 
compensation from a third party, pursuant to applicable laws, regulations, tariffs, or 
agreements. However, the utility operator must timely comply with the requirements of 
this section regardless of whether it has requested or received reimbursement or 
compensation. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 16 of 23 
 



(3) The City will coordinate the schedule for relocation of utility facilities and will provide 
written notice of the time by which the utility operator must remove, relocate, change, 
alter, or underground its facilities. If a utility operator fails to remove, relocate, change, 
alter, or underground any utility facility by the date reasonably established by the City, 
the utility operator must pay all costs incurred by the City due to such failure, including 
but not limited to costs related to project delays. In addition, the City may cause the 
utility facility to be removed, relocated, changed, altered, or undergrounded and charge 
the utility operator for all expenses incurred. The City will use qualified workers in the 
field and in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Upon 
receipt of a detailed invoice from the City, the utility operator must reimburse the City 
within 30 days for the costs incurred by the City. 
 
(4) The obligation to remove survives the termination of the license or franchise.  
 
3-6-345 Removal of Abandoned and Unauthorized Facilities. 
(1) A utility operator and any other person that owns, controls, or maintains any 
abandoned or unauthorized utility facility within a right of way must, at its own expense, 
remove the facility and restore the rights-of-way to City standards. The City will provide 
written notice of any known abandoned or unauthorized facilities and require 
compliance within 30 days after written notice is sent, or such other time as is 
reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
(2) A utility system or facility is unauthorized under any of the following circumstances: 

 
(a) The utility facility is outside the scope of authority granted by the City under 
the license, franchise, or other written agreement; 
 
(b) The utility facility was never licensed or franchised;  

 
(c) The utility facility was once licensed or franchised, but the license or franchise 
has expired or been terminated.  
 
(d) The utility facility is abandoned. Abandoned means that the utility facility is not 
in use and is not planned for further use. A facility will be presumed abandoned if 
it is not used for a period of one (1) year. A utility operator may attempt to 
overcome this presumption by presenting plans for future use of the facility to the 
City, which will determine application of the presumption in its sole discretion. 
 
(e) The utility facility is improperly constructed or installed or is in a location not 
permitted by the construction permit, license, franchise, or this Chapter. 
 
(f)  The utility operator is in violation of a material provision of this Chapter and 
fails to cure such violation within 30 days of the City sending written notice of 
such violation, unless the City extends such time period in writing. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 17 of 23 
 



(3) The City’s written authorization is required to abandon utility facilities in place, which 
the City may deny in its sole discretion.  
 
3-6-350 Emergency Removal by City.  The City retains the right and privilege to cut or 
move the facilities of any utility operator or similar entity located within the rights-of-way 
of the City, without notice, as the City may determine to be necessary, appropriate or 
useful in response to a public health or safety emergency. The City will use qualified 
personnel or contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and 
regulations to the extent reasonably practicable without impeding the City's response to 
the emergency. If the City cuts or moves a utility operator’s facility as a result of a public 
health or safety emergency, the City will notify the utility operator as soon as reasonably 
practical what facilities were cut or moved.  
 
3-6-355 No City Liability. 
(1) The City is not liable to any utility operator for any damage to utility facilities, or for 
any consequential losses resulting directly or indirectly from any damage, caused by the 
City’s actions, or its contractor, in removing, relocating, altering, or undergrounding the 
facilities, unless such damage arises directly from the City's negligence or willful 
misconduct. 
 
(2) The City is not liable to any utility operator for any damage to utility facilities, or for 
any consequential losses resulting directly or indirectly from any damage, resulting from 
a utility operator's failure to remove, relocate, alter, or underground its facilities as 
required by this Chapter, unless such damage arises directly from the City's negligence 
or willful misconduct. 
 
3-6-360 Engineering Designs and Plans.  
(1)The utility operator must provide the City with two complete sets of as-built plans, in a 
form acceptable to the City, showing the location of its utility facilities in the rights-of-
way and must provide an update of its as-builts if the utility operator's engineered plans 
materially changed during construction.  
(2) Each January, upon request from the City, the utility operator must provide two 
updated complete sets of as-built plans showing all of its utility facilities in the right of 
way. 
 
3-6-365  Maintenance.   
(1) Every utility operator must install and maintain all facilities in a manner that complies 
with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and policies. The utility 
operator must, at its own expense, repair and maintain facilities from time to time as 
may be necessary to accomplish this purpose. 
 
(2) If a utility operator fails to repair and maintain facilities, the City may provide written 
notice of the failure to repair or maintain and establish a date upon which such repair or 
maintenance must occur. If the utility operator fails to cause the repair or maintenance 
to occur within the date established by the City, the City may perform such repair or 
maintenance using qualified personnel or contractors and charge the utility operator for 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 18 of 23 
 



the City’s costs. The utility operator must reimburse the City for the costs the City 
incurred within thirty 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the City. 
 
3-6-370  Vacation of Rights-of-Way.  
(1) If the City vacates any rights-of-way, or portion thereof, that a utility operator uses, 
the utility operator must, at its own expense, remove its facilities from the rights-of-way 
unless:  
 

(a) the City reserves a public utility easement, which the City must make a 
reasonable effort to do provided that there is no expense to the City; or  
 
(b) the utility operator obtains an easement for its facilities.  

 
(2) If the utility operator fails to remove its facilities within 30 days after a right of way is 
vacated, or as otherwise directed or agreed to in writing by the City, the City may 
remove the facilities using qualified workers in accordance with state and federal laws 
and regulations, and charge the utility operator for the City’s costs. The utility operator 
must reimburse the City for the costs the City incurred within thirty 30 days of receipt of 
an invoice from the City. 
 
3-6-375  Insurance.  
(1) All utility operators must maintain in full force and effect the following liability 
insurance policies that protect the utility operator and the City, as well as the City's 
officers, employees, and agents: 
 

(a) Comprehensive general liability insurance with limits of not less than: 
 
(i) $3,000,000.00 for bodily injury or death to each person; 
 
(ii) $3,000,000.00 for property damage resulting from any one accident; 
and 
 
(iii) $3,000,000.00 for all other types of liability. 

(b) Motor vehicle liability insurance for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with 
a limit of $1,000,000.00 for each person and $3,000,000.00 for each accident; 
and 
 
(c) Worker's compensation within statutory limits and employer's liability with 
limits of not less than $1,000,000.00. 

 
(2) The limits of the insurance are subject to statutory changes as to maximum limits of 
liability imposed on municipalities of the State of Oregon.  
 
(3) The insurance provided must be without prejudice to coverage otherwise existing 
and must name the City, its officers, employees, and agents as additional insureds. The 
coverage must apply to claims between insureds on the policy. The utility operator must 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 19 of 23 
 



provide the City 30 days prior written notice of any cancellation or material alteration of 
insurance. If the insurance is canceled or materially altered, the utility operator must 
maintain continuous uninterrupted coverage in the terms and amounts required. The 
utility operator may self-insure, or keep in force a self-insured retention plus insurance, 
for any or all of the above coverage in accordance with Oregon law. 
 
(4) The utility operator must maintain on file with the City sufficient proof of insurance or 
self-insurance acceptable to the City, certifying the coverage required. 
 
3-6-380  Financial Assurance.  
Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City, before a franchise granted or a license 
issued pursuant to this Chapter is effective, and as necessary thereafter, the utility 
operator must provide a performance bond or other financial security. The performance 
bond or other financial security must be in a form acceptable to the City, as security for 
the full and complete performance of the franchise or license, and for compliance with 
the terms of this Chapter, including any costs, expenses, damages or loss to the City 
because of any failure attributable to the utility operator to comply with the codes, 
ordinances, rules, regulations or permits of the City. This obligation is in addition to the 
performance surety required by this Chapter. 
 
3-6-385  Indemnification.  
(1) To the fullest extent permitted by law, each utility operator must defend, save, hold 
harmless, and indemnify the City, its officers, employees, and agents from and against 
any and all claims, suits, actions, losses, damages, liabilities, costs and, expenses of 
any nature whatsoever, including attorneys’ fees at trial and on appeal, resulting from, 
arising out of, or relating to the activities of the utility operator or its affiliates, officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, or lessees, including from any 
negligent, careless, or wrongful acts, omissions, failure to act, or other misconduct of 
the utility operator or its affiliates, officers, employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors or lessees. This includes, but is not limited to, the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair, or removal of a utility operator’s facilities, and in 
providing or offering utility services over the facilities, whether such acts or omissions 
are authorized, allowed or prohibited by this Chapter or by a franchise agreement. The 
acceptance of a license under this Chapter constitutes an agreement by the applicant to 
this requirement.  
 
(2) The City will promptly notify the utility operator upon receipt of any claim made and 
provide the utility operator with an opportunity to provide defense regarding any claim. 
 
(3) Every utility operator must also indemnify the City for any damages, claims, 
additional costs or expenses assessed against or payable by the City arising out of or 
resulting, directly or indirectly, from the utility operator's failure to remove or relocate any 
of its facilities in the rights-of-way or easements in a timely manner, unless the utility 
operator's failure arises directly from the City's negligence or willful misconduct. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 20 of 23 
 



3-6-390  Compliance with Laws. Every utility operator must comply with all applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations, including regulations of any administrative 
agency thereof, as well as all applicable ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations 
of the City, heretofore or hereafter adopted or established during the term of any license 
granted under this Chapter. 
 
3-6-395  Confidential and Proprietary  Information. If any person is required by this 
Chapter to provide books, records, maps or information to the City that the person 
reasonably believes to be confidential or proprietary, the City will take reasonable steps 
to protect the confidential or proprietary nature of the books, records, maps or 
information to the extent permitted by the Oregon Public Records Law, provided that all 
documents are clearly marked as confidential by the person at the time of disclosure to 
the City. The City will not be required to incur any costs to protect such documents, 
other than the City's routine internal procedures for complying with the Oregon Public 
Records Law. 
 
3-6-400  Open Books and Records. Upon providing a utility operator with five 
business days’ prior notice, the City has the right to inspect, at any time during normal 
business hours, all books, records, maps, plans, income tax returns, financial 
statements, service complaint logs, performance test results, record of requests for 
service, and other like materials, whether in paper, electronic, or other form, of the utility 
operator which relate to the operation under the Rights-of-Way License and compliance 
with this Chapter. Access to the aforementioned records must not be denied by the 
licensee on the basis that said records contain “proprietary” information.  
 
3-6-405  Audits.  
(1) The City may audit any utility operator at any time. The City will make a written 
request for information and the utility operator must comply with the request within 30 
days of receipt of the City’s written request, or such other time as agreed in writing. 
 
(2) Every utility operator must furnish the City with information sufficient to demonstrate 
that the provider is in compliance with all the requirements of this Chapter and its 
franchise agreement, if any, including but not limited to payment of any applicable 
registration fee, rights-of-way fee, or franchise fee. 
 
(3) Every utility operator must make available for inspection by the City at reasonable 
times and intervals all maps, records, books, diagrams, plans, and other documents 
maintained by the utility operator with respect to its facilities within the rights-of-way or 
public utility easements. Access must be provided within the City unless prior 
arrangement for access elsewhere has been agreed with the City. 
 
(4) If the City's audit of the books, records, and other documents or information of the 
utility operator or utility service provider demonstrates that the utility operator or provider 
has underpaid the rights-of-way fee or franchise fee by three percent (3%) or more in 
any one (1) year, the utility operator must reimburse the City for the cost of the audit, in 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 21 of 23 
 



addition to any interest owed as provided by this Chapter or as specified in a franchise 
agreement. 
 
(5) Any underpayment, including any interest or audit cost reimbursement, must be paid 
within 30 days of the City's notice to the utility operator.   
 
3-6-410  Severability and Preemption. The provisions of this Chapter must be 
interpreted to be consistent with applicable federal and state law, and must be 
interpreted, to the extent possible, to cover only matters not preempted by federal or 
state law. If any article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, term, provision, 
condition, covenant or portion of this Chapter is for any reason declared or held to be 
invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction or superseded by state 
or federal legislation, rules, regulations or decision, the remainder of this Chapter must 
not be affected thereby but must be deemed as a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision, and such holding must not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof, 
and each remaining section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, term, provision, 
condition, covenant or portion of this Chapter must be valid and enforceable to the 
fullest extent permitted by law. In the event any provision is preempted by federal or 
state laws, rules or regulations, the provision must be preempted only to the extent 
required by law and any portion not preempted must survive. If any federal or state law 
resulting in preemption is later repealed, rescinded, amended or otherwise changed to 
end the preemption, such provision must thereupon return to full force and effect and 
must thereafter be binding without further action by the City. 
 
3-6-420  Application to Existing Agreements.  This Chapter applies to any and all 
franchise agreements existing on the date this Chapter is enacted and any subsequent 
franchise agreements to the extent this Chapter is not in direct conflict with and can be 
implemented consistent with such franchise agreements. 
 
3-6-500  Violations  
(1) Prior to issuing a violation citation, the City will give the utility operator written notice 
of any violations and provide at least 30 days, or such other reasonable amount of time, 
for the utility operator to remedy the violation.   
 
(2) Any person who violates any provision of this Chapter commits a civil infraction and 
is subject to a fine of up to $1,000. Each violation, and each day that a violation 
continues, is a separate civil infraction. 
 
(3) The civil infraction procedures in Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 7-01 apply to the 
prosecution of any violation of this Chapter. 
 
(4) Any civil penalties assessed are in addition to, and not in lieu of, other remedies 
available by law to the City and are in addition to other remedies provided by this 
Chapter. 
 

Section 2. TMC 10-1 (Telecommunications) is repealed in its entirety. 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 22 of 23 
 



 
Section 3. Severability. Each section of this ordinance, and any part thereof, is 

severable. If any part of this ordinance is held invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance remains in full force and effect. 

 
Section 4. This Ordinance becomes effective 30 days after adoption. 

 
ADOPTED by the City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY       
                      Mayor 
 
ATTEST 

 
BY      
                  City Recorder 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1399-17 - Page 23 of 23 
 



City of Tualatin Council Work Session

April 10, 2017       #1

City of Tualatin Council Work Session

City of Tualatin

Rights of Way Ordinance



City of Tualatin Council Work Session

April 10, 2017       #2

• Draft Ordinance

– Tualatin’s Telecommunications 

Ordinance

– Existing Franchise Agreements

– Regionally Adopted Ordinances

– Council Direction

• Draft Provided to Franchises for 

comment and consideration

Process



City of Tualatin Council Work Session

April 10, 2017       #3

• Eliminate the Registration 

Component

– Business License reference

• Longer remittance periods

– 30 days to 45 days 

• Delayed Construction 

Coordination Schedule

– January to March

Feedback based Changes



City of Tualatin Council Work Session

April 10, 2017       #4

• Items that limit our ability to

– Know who, what, when, and where

– Understand the types of services 

being provided  

– Mitigate impacts to traffic

– Coordinate Projects that impact 

structural integrity of the roads

– Make policy decisions now and in 

the future

Feedback not included



City of Tualatin Council Work Session

April 10, 2017       #5

Draft Components- Major Components

Component Duration

Business License 1 year

License 5 year

Construction 

Permit Each Project

Right of Way Use Quarterly

Attachment Annually



City of Tualatin Council Work Session

April 10, 2017       #6

• Development of Forms/Setting up Data Bases

– Licensing

– Permitting/Notification 

• Policy Decisions & Stakeholder Involvement

– Public Works Construction Code

– Resolutions on fees associated with use of Rights of 

Way

Next Steps



   
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/22/2017  
CONSENT
AGENDA:

Consideration of Resolution No. 5319-17 Declaring the City of Tualatin a Sanctuary
City

CONSENT AGENDA
Consideration of Resolution No. 5319-17 Declaring the City of Tualatin a Sanctuary City

SUMMARY
At the May 8, 2017 City Council meeting, several individuals spoke during the Citizen Comment
portion of the agenda requesting that the City Council adopt a resolution declaring the City of
Tualatin a sanctuary city.  After discussion, the City Council directed staff to dedicate some time
at the May 22nd work session to discuss the issue and to place the attached resolution on the
business meeting agenda for discussion.

Sanctuary City Resolution 
Inclusive City Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. XX  
 

Resolution No. XX   Page 1  

DECLARING THE CITY OF TUALATIN A SANCTUARY CITY 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is committed to being a welcoming city for all 
individuals and is a community that accepts everyone, regardless of a person’s race, 
ethnicity, place of origin or immigration status; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin adheres to Oregon Revised Statue 181A.820, 

which prohibits any law enforcement agency in the State of Oregon from using any 
resources (money, equipment, or personnel) “for the purpose of detecting or 
apprehending persons whose only violation of law is that they are persons of foreign 

citizenship present in the United States in violation of federal immigration laws”; and 
 

WHEREAS, all people within the city need to feel safe to contact local law 
enforcement or city government and to be able to access critical public safety services 
without fear; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin defines “Sanctuary City” as a city that is 

committed to providing a safe community for individuals, regardless of race, ethnicity, 
place or origin, or immigration status, and works to ensure that all members of our 
community are sage and can call for public safety assistance without being questioned 

about federal immigration laws and without fear or reprisal based solely on legal status, 
in accordance with current Oregon law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is committed to ensuring that the provision of 

services and benefits by the City shall not be conditioned upon a community member’s 

federal immigration status, except as required by law; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 

Section 1.  We declare the City of Tualatin as a Sanctuary City, as a statement 

of unity for our community. The City of Tualatin will continue to provide a safe 
community for all residents, regardless of immigration status, in accordance with ORS 

181A.820. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance becomes effective upon adoption. 

 
Adopted by the City Council this 22nd Day of May, 2017. 

 
 
 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
BY _______________________  

                City Attorney  

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 

BY _______________________   
          Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
BY _______________________    

                 City Recorder 
 



RESOLUTION NO. XX  
 

Resolution No. XX   Page 1  

DECLARING THE CITY OF TUALATIN AN INCLUSIVE CITY 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is committed to being an inclusive city for all 
individuals and is a community that accepts everyone, regardless of a person’s race, 
ethnicity, place of origin, or religion; and 

 
WHEREAS, all people within the city need to feel safe to contact local law 

enforcement or city government and to be able to access critical public safety services 
without fear; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is committed to ensuring that the provision of 
services and benefits by the City shall not be conditioned upon a community member’s 

federal immigration status, except as required by law; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 

 
Section 1.  We declare the City of Tualatin as an Inclusive City, as a statement 

of unity for our community, that embraces, celebrates, and welcomes its immigrant and 
refugee residents and recognizes their contributions to the collective prosperity of all 

residents of the City of Tualatin. 
 
Section 2. We declare that it is the policy of the City that no City money, 

equipment, or personnel may be used for the enforcement of federal immigration law. 
 
Section 3. This resolution is intended to be consistent with federal and state law, 

including 8 U.S.C. § 1373 and 1644. 

 
 

Adopted by the City Council this 22nd Day of May, 2017. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 
BY _______________________  
                City Attorney  

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
BY _______________________   

          Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
BY _______________________    
                 City Recorder 

 


	Agenda
	AI_2385_Proclamation Declaring the week of May 21-27, 2017 as Emergency Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin
	ATT_Proclamation
	AI_2390_2016_17 Pavement Maintenance Program Bid Award
	ATT_1-A  Resolution 5320-17
	ATT_Pavement Improvements Map
	AI_2391_Rights-of-Way Ordinance
	ATT_Ordinance 1399-17
	ATT_Row Ordinance Presentation
	AI_2387_Consideration of Resolution No. 5319-17 Declaring the City of Tualatin a Sanctuary City
	ATT_Sanctuary City Resolution
	ATT_Inclusive City Resolution

